

**VOL: 2001 PAGE: 30001**  
**RECORDED DOCUMENT**

STATE OF OREGON  
COUNTY OF DESCHUTES



\*2001-30001 \* Vol-Page

Printed: 06/25/2001 11:08:21

**DO NOT REMOVE THIS CERTIFICATE**

(This certificate constitutes a part of the original instrument in accordance with ORS 205.180(2). Removal of this certificate may invalidate this certificate and affect the admissibility of the original instrument into evidence in any legal proceeding.)

I hereby certify that the attached instrument was received and duly recorded in Deschutes County records:

DATE AND TIME: Jun. 25, 2001; 11:03 a.m.

RECEIPT NO: 37383

DOCUMENT TYPE: Deed

FEE PAID: \$206.00

NUMBER OF PAGES: 36

A handwritten signature in cursive script that reads "Mary Sue Penhollow".

MARY SUE PENHOLLOW  
DESCHUTES COUNTY CLERK

206 -  
WARRANTY DEED

2001-30001-1

BROOKS RESOURCES CORPORATION AS TO AN UNDIVIDED 1/2 INTEREST, AND MICHAEL J. TENNANT AS TO AN UNDIVIDED 1/2 INTEREST,  
Grantor(s) hereby grant, bargain, sell, warrant and convey to:  
MICHAEL J. TENNANT,  
Grantee(s) and grantee's heirs, successors and assigns the following described real property, free of encumbrances except as specifically set forth herein in the County of DESCHUTES and State of Oregon, to wit:

~~LOTS 83, 86, 87, 89, 130, 161, 164, 165, 166, 167, 168, 169, 170, 171, 172, 176, 177, 178, AND 185, AWBREY VILLAGE PHASE III, DESCHUTES COUNTY, OREGON~~

SUBJECT TO ATTACHED BYLAWS AND DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

THIS INSTRUMENT WILL NOT ALLOW USE OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS INSTRUMENT IN VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LAND USE LAWS AND REGULATIONS. BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON ACQUIRING FEE TITLE TO THE PROPERTY SHOULD CHECK WITH THE APPROPRIATE CITY OR COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY APPROVED USES AND TO DETERMINE ANY LIMITS ON LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST PRACTICES AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930.

The true and actual consideration for this conveyance is    .00.

Until a change is requested, all tax statements shall be sent to Grantee at the following address: 516 SW 13<sup>th</sup>, Suite A, Bend, OR 97702

Dated this 22<sup>nd</sup> day of June, 2001.

Recorded by AmeriTitle as an accommodation only. No liability is accepted for the condition of title or for the validity, sufficiency, or effect of this document.

BROOKS RESOURCES CORPORATION  
BY: [Signature]  
KIRK E. SCHUELER, PRESIDENT  
[Signature] P.O.A.  
MICHAEL J. TENNANT



State of Oregon  
County of DESCHUTES

This instrument was acknowledged before me on June 22, 2001 by BROOKS RESOURCES CORPORATION, BY KIRK E. SCHUELER, PRESIDENT AND MICHAEL J. TENNANT.

[Signature]  
(Notary Public for Oregon)  
My commission expires 4-20-2003

ESCROW NO. SB022506DS

Return to:  
MICHAEL J. TENNANT  
→ 516 SW 13<sup>th</sup> Ste A  
Bend

After recording, return to:  
AmeriTitle  
15 OREGON AVENUE, BEN

**BYLAWS  
OF  
AWBREY VILLAGE PHASES III THROUGH VI HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION,  
INC.**

The following bylaws have been adopted at the organization meeting of Awbrey Village Homeowners Association, Inc., a homeowners association formed pursuant to ORS 94.625. This applies to the real property in the City of Bend, Deschutes County, State of Oregon, described as Awbrey Village Phase III through VI as recorded in the Deschutes County Records, and incorporated by reference herein.

**ARTICLE I  
Definitions**

As used in these bylaws, the terms set forth below shall have the following meanings:

Section 1. "Awbrey Village" means the property subject to the Declaration referred to in Section 4 and as described as Awbrey Village Phase III through VI as recorded in the Deschutes County Records, and incorporated by reference herein.

Section 2. "Corporation" means Awbrey Village Homeowners Association, Inc.

Section 3. "Declarant" means Michael Tennant, an individual, and Brooks Resources, Inc., any person who succeeds to any special Declarant right and to whom all of the Declarant's ownership interest in Awbrey Village is transferred, or any person, other than the Corporation, to whom the Declarant has transferred, for purposes of resale, all of Declarant's ownership interest in Awbrey Village.

Section 4. "Declaration" means the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions for Awbrey Village dated June 20, 2001 and all other subsequent phases of Awbrey Village.

Section 5. "Homesite" means a platted or legal partitioned lot within Awbrey Village or any property so designated in any Supplemental Declaration annexing such property to Awbrey Village but not including any Declarant Area as defined in the Declaration.

Section 6. "Owner" means the person or persons owning any Homesite, including any vendee under a recorded land sales contract to whom possession has passed, but excluding any vendor under a recorded land sales contract who has given up possession.

**ARTICLE II  
Offices**

The principal office of the Corporation in the state of Oregon shall be located in the city of Bend, county of Deschutes. The Corporation may have other offices, either within or outside



of the state of Oregon, as the board of directors may determine or as the affairs of the Corporation may require.

The Corporation shall have and maintain in the state of Oregon a registered office and a registered agent whose office is identical with the registered office, as required by the Oregon Nonprofit Corporation Act. The registered office may be, but need not be, identical with the principal office in the state of Oregon, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the board of directors.

### ARTICLE III Members

Section 1. Class of Members. The Corporation shall have two classes of members. The designation of the classes and the qualifications and rights of the members of the classes shall be as hereinafter set forth.

Section 2. Membership. Every Owner of one or more Homesites within Awbrey Village shall, during the entire period of such Owner's ownership of one or more Homesites within Awbrey Village, be a member of the Corporation. Such membership shall commence, exist, and continue simply by virtue of such ownership, shall expire automatically upon termination of such ownership, and need not be confirmed or evidenced by any certificate or acceptance of membership.

Section 3. Voting Rights. Voting rights within the Corporation shall be allocated as follows:

- (a) Homesites. Except as provided in Section 3(b) with respect to Class B members, Homesites shall be allocated one vote per Homesite.
- (b) Classes of Voting Membership. The Corporation shall have two classes of voting membership:

Class A. Class A members shall be all Owners with the exception of the Declarant (except that beginning on the date on which the Class B membership is converted to Class A membership, and thereafter, Class A members shall be all Owners including the Declarant). Class A members shall be entitled to voting rights for each Homesite owned computed in accordance with Section 3(a) above. When more than one person holds an interest in any Homesite, all such persons shall be members. The vote for such Homesite shall be exercised as they among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one vote be cast with respect to any Homesite.

Class B. The Class B member shall be Declarant and shall be entitled to nine times the voting rights computed under Section 3(b) for each Homesite owned by Declarant. The Class B membership shall cease and be converted to Class A membership on the happening of either of the following events, whichever occurs earlier:

- (i) When seventy-five percent (75%) of the Homesites in the final phase of development of Awbrey Village have been sold and conveyed to Owners other than Declarant; or
- (ii) At such earlier time as Declarant may elect in writing to terminate Class B membership.

Section 4. Suspension of Voting Rights. Voting rights may be suspended in the event of a default in the payment of assessments as provided in the Declaration.

#### ARTICLE IV Meetings of Members

Section 1. Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the members shall be held at a time designated by the President in each year, beginning with the year 2003, for the purpose of electing directors and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. If the day fixed for the annual meeting shall be a legal holiday in the state of Oregon, the meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If the election of directors shall not be held on the day designated here for any annual meeting, or at any adjournment of the annual meeting, the board of directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the members as soon after as is convenient.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called by the President, a majority of the board of Directors, or members having not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights.

Section 3. Place of Meeting. The board of directors may designate any place within the state of Oregon as the place of meeting for any annual meeting or for any special meeting called by the board of directors. If no designation is made or if a special meeting be otherwise called, the place of meeting shall be the principal office of the Corporation in the state of Oregon.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. Written or printed notice stating the place, day, and hour of the annual meeting of members shall be delivered, either personally or by mail, to each member entitled to vote at such meeting, not less than ten nor more than 50 days before the date of such meeting, by or at the direction of the president, or the Secretary, or the officers or persons calling the meeting. Each notice shall state the time and place of the meeting and the items on the agenda, including the general nature of any proposed amendment to the Declaration by bylaws, any budget changes, or any proposal to remove a director or officer. If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his address as it appears on the records of the Corporation, with postage thereon prepaid. Notice shall also be given to all mortgagees requesting such notice. Mortgagees may designate a representative to attend a meeting called under this section.

Section 5. Informal Action by Members. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of the members, or any required by law to be taken at a meeting of members, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting out the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter of the action.



Section 6. Quorum. The members holding 25 percent of the votes which may be cast at any meeting shall constitute a quorum at such meeting. If a quorum is not present at any meeting of members, a majority of the members present may adjourn the meeting without further notice.

Section 7. Proxies. At any meeting of members, a member entitled to vote may vote by proxy executed in writing by the member or by his authorized attorney in fact. No proxy shall be valid after 11 months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy.

Section 8. Voting by Mail. Where directors or officers are to be elected by members or any class or classes of members the election may be conducted by mail in the manner provided in the Oregon Nonprofit Corporation Act.

## ARTICLE V Transition

Section 1. Interim Board; Turnover Meeting. Declarant shall have the right to appoint an interim board of three directors or more, who shall serve as the board of directors of the Corporation until replaced by Declarant or their successors have been elected by the members at the turnover meeting described in this section. Declarant shall call a meeting by giving notice to each member as provided in these bylaws for the purpose of turning over administrative responsibility for Awbrey Village to the Corporation not later than one hundred eighty (180) days after Homesites representing seventy-five percent (75%) of the votes in all phases of Awbrey Village computed in accordance with Article III Section 3(a) above have been sold and conveyed to members other than Declarant. If Declarant does not call a meeting required by this section within the required time, the Transitional Advisory Committee described in Section 2 below or any member may call a meeting and give notice as required in this section. At the turnover meeting, the interim directors shall resign and their successors shall be elected by the members and Declarant as provided in the Declaration and these bylaws.

Section 2. Transitional Advisory Committee. Declarant or the members shall form a transitional advisory committee (the "Transitional Advisory Committee") to provide for the transition from administrative responsibility by Declarant of Awbrey Village to administrative responsibility by the Corporation. Not later than the ninetieth (90<sup>th</sup>) day after the Declarant has conveyed to members other than Declarant Homesites representing sixty-seven percent (67%) of the votes of all phases in Awbrey Village computed in accordance with Article III Section 3(a) above, Declarant shall call a meeting of members for the purpose of selecting the Transitional Advisory Committee. The Transitional Advisory Committee shall consist of three or more persons. The members, other than Declarant, shall select two or more members. Declarant may select no more than one committee member which may be the Declarant. The Transitional Advisory Committee shall have reasonable access to all information and documents which Declarant is required to turn over to the Corporation under ORS 94.616.

- (a) Declarant Failure to Call Meeting. A member may call a meeting of members to select the Transitional Advisory Committee if the Declarant fails to do so as provided above.

- (b) Members' Failure to Select Committee Members. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the members do not select members for the Transitional Advisory Committee as described above, Declarant shall have no further obligation to form the Transitional Advisory Committee.
- (c) Turnover Meeting. The requirement for formation of a Transitional Advisory Committee shall not apply once the turnover meeting specified in Section 1 above has been held.

Section 3. Declarant Control After Turnover. After the turnover meeting described in Section 1 above, Declarant shall continue to have the voting rights described in Article III Section 3(b). In addition, a majority of the board of directors of the Corporation shall be elected by Declarant, as Class B member, with the balance of the board of directors elected by the Class A members. After termination of Class B membership, all directors shall be elected by the Class A members.

## ARTICLE VI Board of Directors

Section 1. General Powers. The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its board of directors. Except for directors appointed by Declarant, directors shall be members of the Corporation.

Section 2. Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of directors shall be three. Each director shall hold office until the next annual meeting of members and until his successor shall have been elected and qualified.

Section 3. Regular Meetings. A regular annual meeting of the board of directors shall be held without other notice than this bylaw, immediately after, and at the same place as, the annual meeting of members. The board of directors may provide by resolution the time and place, within the state of Oregon, for the holding of additional regular meetings of the board without other notice than the resolution. All regular and special meetings of the board of directors shall be open to members.

Section 4. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the board of directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any two directors. The persons authorized to call special meetings of the board may fix any place within the state of Oregon as the place for holding any special meeting of the board called by them.

Section 5. Notice. Notice of any special meeting of the board of directors shall be given at least three days previously by written notice delivered personally or sent by mail or other electronic communications to each director at the director's address as shown by the records of the Corporation. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail in a sealed envelope so addressed, with postage prepaid. If notice be given by telegram, it shall be deemed to be delivered when the telegram is delivered to the telegraph company. Any director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a such meeting, except where a director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction



of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the board need be specified in the notice by law or by these bylaws. For other than emergency meetings, notice of board of directors meetings shall be posted in a place or places within Awbrey Village at least three days prior to the meeting, or notice shall be provided by a method otherwise reasonably calculated to inform lot owners of such meetings.

Section 6. Quorum. A majority of the board of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the board; but if less than a majority of the directors are present at the meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

Section 7. Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the board of directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by law or by these bylaws.

Section 8. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the board of directors and any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of directors, shall be filled by the board of directors. A director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office.

Section 9. Compensation. Directors as such shall not receive any stated salaries for their services.

Section 10. Informal Action by Directors. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of directors, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of directors, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting out the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the directors.

Section 11. Emergency Meetings. Emergency meetings of the board of directors may be held without notice if the reason for the emergency is stated in the minutes of the meeting. Only emergency meetings of the board of directors may be conducted by telephonic communication.

Section 12. Power and Responsibility. The board of directors shall have all of the powers and responsibilities of the board of directors of a homeowners association under Chapter 94 of Oregon Revised Statutes, as amended from time to time.

## ARTICLE VII Officers

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, one or more Vice Presidents (the number to be determined by the board of directors), a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other officers as may be elected in accordance with the provisions of this Article VII. The board of directors may elect or appoint the other officers, including one or more assistant secretaries and one or more assistant treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, to have the authority



and perform the duties prescribed by the board of directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person.

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the board of directors at the regular annual meeting of the board of directors. If the election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, it shall be held as soon thereafter as is convenient. New offices may be created and filled at any meeting of the board of directors. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been elected and shall have qualified.

Section 3. Removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the board of directors may be removed by the board of directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served by his or her removal, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the officer so removed.

Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or otherwise, may be filled by the board of directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 5. President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the Corporation and shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Corporation. He or she shall preside at all meetings of the members and of the board of directors. He or she may sign, with the secretary or any other proper officer of the Corporation authorized by the board of directors, any contracts or other instruments which the board of directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution shall be expressly delegated by the board of directors or by these bylaws or by statute to some other officer or agent of the Corporation; and in general he shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors.

Section 6. Vice President. In the absence of the President or in the event of his inability or refusal to act, the Vice President (or in the event there be more than one Vice President, the Vice Presidents in the order of their election) shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. Any Vice President shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him by the President or by the board of directors.

Section 7. Treasurer. If required by the board of directors, the treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such sum and with such surety as the board of directors shall determine. He shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Corporation; receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the Corporation from any source, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Corporation in such banks or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of Article VIII of these bylaw; and in general perform all the duties incident to the office of treasurer and such other duties as may be assigned to him by the President or by the board of directors.

Section 8. Secretary. The secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the members and of the board of directors in books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are

